
 

1 
 

                                         POLK  COUNTY,  WISCONSIN 
WWW.CO . PO L K .W I . U S  

Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 

Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 
Tuesday, March 19, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Order of Business: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Receipt of Evidence and Opinion on Proper Notice 
3. Roll Call 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Approval of Agenda Confirming to Amended Notice of Meeting/Amended Agenda 
6. Matters Offered For Adoption on Consent Agenda: 

a. Approval of the Agenda Conforming to Notice of Meeting and Agenda Issued March 
8, 2019 

b. Consideration/corrections to the published minutes from February 22, 2019 County 
Board Meeting 

c. Confirmation of Emergency Fire Wardens for Polk County for 2019:  
      Jean Smith, Mike Stoddard, Ron and Patty Fredericks 

7. Public Comments –3 minutes per person –not to exceed 30 minutes total 
8. Presentation – Northwestern Wisconsin Electric/Dave Dahlberg Proposal to Transfer the 

Clam Falls Dam to Polk County 
9. County Board Chairperson’s Report 
10. Administrator’s Message and Report 
11. Confirmation of Administrator’s Appointments  

a. Confirmation of Appointment of Mark Kopp to regular seat of Board of Adjustment 
for term ending May 31, 2019 

b. Confirmation of Appointment of J. Gary Lilyquist to second alternate seat of Board 
of Adjustment for term ending November 30, 2021 

12. Discussion and Possible Recommendations Regarding Reconsideration of Resolution No. 
93-18 to Appropriate Sufficient Funding for the Analysis of the Fairgrounds (Resolution 
No. 93-18: Resolution Clarifying the Fairground Grandstand Capital Improvement Process) 

13. Discussion and Possible Recommendations/Amendments Regarding Changes to Format of 
Resolutions in Rules of Order Ordinance 

14. Discussion and Possible Recommendations Regarding Proposed Amendments to the Polk 
County Board Rules of Order Ordinance in Regard to Board of Adjustment Nominations 
by Environmental Services Committee 

15. Resolutions and Ordinances Returning from Committee for Discussion and Action: 
 

a. Ordinance No. 01-19: To Repeal and Recreate Article 3. 1. a. of the Polk County 
Board of Supervisors Rules of Order Ordinance - Concerning the Sponsorship and 
Processing of Proposed Resolutions and Ordinances 
(Report of Executive Committee) 
 

1



Polk County Board of Supervisors       

    2 
 

b. Ordinance No. 15-19:  Polk County Uniform Rural Addressing and Road Numbering 
Ordinance (Formerly Ordinance No. 48-18) (Report of Public Safety and Highway 
Committee) 

 
c. Ordinance No. 06-19:  Amendments to Subdivision Ordinance- Concerning Road 

Design Standards 
 

d. Ordinance No. 07-19: Amendments to Comprehensive Land Use Ordinance (Note - 
Description of Specific Provisions Affected) 

 
e. Ordinance No. 08-19: Amendment to Shoreland Protection Zoning Ordinance(Note - 

Description of Specific Provisions Affected) 
 

f. Resolution No. 14-19: Resolution Designating the Week of April 8 Through April 12, 
2019 as “Work Zone Awareness Week” in Polk County 

 
16. Supervisors Announcements  
17. Adjourn 

 
This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities wishing to attend and/or 
participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715‐485‐9226) at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so 
all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests are confidential. 
 

2



1 
 

          Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019  

 
Vice Chairman Luke called the February 19, 2019 regular session of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website (February 8, 2019), and published 
in a legal newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of February 
11, 2019. In addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on February 8, 2019 copies of 
such notice of meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e‐mail or mail in accordance 
with Article 3, Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order.   
The County Clerk stated that the Amended Agenda was posted in the Government Center, 
posted on the County website, and copies of such notice of meeting distributed to the 
supervisors and media via email on February 18, 2019.  
 
The County Board received verbal opinion of Corporation Counsel Malone that the initial 
advance written notice and the amended agenda, posted and published as described by the 
Clerk satisfied the applicable provision of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable 
procedural provisions of the Polk County Board Rules of Order.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call.  Eleven County 
Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum. Absent and excused were Supervisors 
Johansen, Bonneprise, Masters and Nelson.  Supervisor Nelson joined meeting at 2:08 p.m. 
bringing the total to twelve Supervisors present.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Vice Chair Luke called to the floor for a motion to suspend the Rules of Order to allow for 
approval of the amended agenda and to debate and act upon all resolutions noticed.  
Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to suspend rules to allow for approval of amended agenda and to 
debate and act upon all resolutions noticed on the agenda. 
Vice Chair Luke called for a roll call vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous roll call 
vote (11 voting for and 4 Supervisors absent). 

3



2 
 

 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor consideration and approval of the Amended Agenda as 
published. Motion (Demulling/Jepsen) to adopt the Agenda as Amended. Vice Chairman Luke 
called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt the Amended Agenda. Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(O’Connell/Larsen) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Vice Chairman Luke called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda: Minutes from January 22, 2019 special session 
adopted as published and Resolution No. 12‐19: Resolution to Approve Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment for the Town of St Croix Falls adopted.  
 
Time was given for public comment. Public comment was received by County Board. 
 
Time was given for the County Board Chairperson’s report, no report was received. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Interim Administrator Fuge for the Administrator’s report. The 
County Board received updates regarding the status of open positions including the Criminal 
Justice Collaborating Council Coordinator, Information Technology Director, and Land Use 
Division Director. The County Board received budgetary updates on various departments. The 
financial forecast report on the Lime Quarry is pending from Clifton‐Larsen. A safety analysis 
report on the Recycling Center is pending. The Fairgrounds needs assessment is underway. The 
Fairgrounds Management agreement is in process. Upcoming meetings include Municipal 
Roundtable meeting at the Government Center on February 21 at 1:00 p.m. and Department of 
Transportation meeting in Osceola regarding the detour study for Highway 8 on March 7, 2019 
at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Interim Administrator Fuge announced the appointment of Bernie Desmarais to the Board of 
Adjustment for the term ending May 31, 2021. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to confirm said appointment.  
Motion (Jepsen/Larsen) to confirm the appointments of Bernie Desmarais to the Board of 
Adjustment for the term ending May 31, 2021. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on 
the motion to confirm said appointment. Motion to confirm appointments Bernie Desmarais to 
the Board of Adjustment for the term ending May 31, 2021 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Scott Teigen, Kwik Trip Vice President and Dan Tronrud, owner 
of Osceola Auto Body to provide information to the County Board regarding the Kwik Trip and 
Osceola Auto Body Proposal to Purchase Tax Delinquent Lands located in the Village of Osceola.  
 
 

4



3 
 

The Board received updates from Corporation Counsel Malone regarding pending claims from 
Public Administration Associates, Friends of Stower Seven Lakes State Trail and Peter Henry v. 
Polk County Board of Supervisors. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor for a motion to convene in Closed Session. 
Motion (Nelson/Olson) to convene in closed session for purposes and on statutory basis 
noticed on the amended agenda.  Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said motion. 
Motion to convene in closed session carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 

** Closed Session 2:47 p.m.** (Minutes separate and under seal) 
 

Vice Chairman Luke asked that the record reflect those present for closed session: Supervisors 
Brad Olson, Doug Route, Tracy LaBlanc, Chris Nelson, Michael Prichard, Jim Edgell, Kim 
O’Connell, Larry Jepsen, Vice Chairman Jay Luke, Joe Demulling, Michael Larsen, and Russ 
Arcand.  Also present were, Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator; Sharon Jorgenson, County 
Clerk; Malia Malone, Corporation Counsel; Emil Norby, Highway Commissioner; and Tim 
Anderson, County Planner.  
 
*Reconvened in Open session: 3:48 p.m.   
Vice Chairman Luke called for a recess at 3:48 p.m. Vice Chairman Luke declared the Board back 
in legislative session at 3:58 p.m.  
 
Upon reconvening in open session, Vice Chairman Luke made the following announcement to 
the press regarding action in closed session:   
 
That no action would be taken in regard to the pending claims and litigation items noticed on 
the agenda and the same will be addressed at the March County Board meeting if necessary. 
Vice Chairman Luke also announced that the Board discussed the Kwik Trip sale and Resolution 
No. 13‐19: Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 75‐18 Authorizing the Submission of the 
Proposed Master Plan for the Stower Seven Lakes Trail and the Cattail Trail (Polk County 
Segment) to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor Resolution No. 13‐19:  Resolution Rescinding Resolution 
No. 75‐18 Authorizing the Submission of the Proposed Master Plan for the Stower Seven Lakes 
Trail and the Cattail Trail (Polk County Segment) to the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources.  
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 13‐19.  
 
Motion (Nelson/Route) to adopt Resolution No. 13‐19.  Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice 
vote on said motion. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 13‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote 
(Absent were Supervisors Johansen, Masters, and Bonneprise).    Resolution No. 13‐19:  
Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 75‐18: Authorizing the Submission of the Proposed 
Master Plan for the Stower Seven Lakes Trail and the Cattail Trail (Polk County Segment) to the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources adopted. 

5



4 
 

 
Vice Chairman Luke called to the floor Resolution No. 04‐19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of 
Kwik Trip to Purchase Tax Delinquent Lands Located in Village of Osceola 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Supervisor O’Connell to provide information regarding the 
resolution. Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19. 
 
Motion (O’Connell/Larsen) to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19. Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice 
vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19. 
 
Motion (O’Connell/Larsen) to amend Resolution No. 04‐19 as provided in Amendment 1 and 
Amendment 2, below as follows:  
Amendment 1:  
At Line 29, insert the following:  
“WHEREAS, at the Environmental Services Committee meeting of February 6, 2019, Kwik Trip 
presented and outlined a revised offer to purchase the subject properties for a purchase price 
of $355,000 and revised terms and conditions; and  
WHEREAS, the Environmental Services Committee has recommended to the County Board to 
accept the revised offer of Kwik Trip and to amend this resolution to incorporate the revised 
offer to purchase; and  
WHEREAS, on February 7, 2019, Kwik Trip forwarded to the County its revised offer to 
purchase, a copy of which is marked as the “Kwik Trip Offer 02‐07‐2019”, and is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein.”  
Amendment 2:  
To further amend Resolution No. 4‐19, at Lines 30‐33, to read as follows:  
“NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Polk County Board of Supervisors confirms the 
acceptance of the offer of Kwik Trip, identified and attached here to as the “Kwik Trip Offer 02‐
07‐2019”, to purchase for a sales price of Three Hundred Fifty‐Five Thousand ($355,000) 
Dollars, the two adjacent properties along Ridge Road in the village of Osceola and having the 
legal descriptions, as follows:”  
And to renumber Resolution No. 4, accordingly.  
********  
Fiscal impact Note: The County took the parcels in 2010 through tax foreclosure. The total taxes 
that were written off, which include special assessments and charges, amounted to 
$351,231.43 for both parcels, $175,861 on Parcel#165‐00612; and $175,369 on Parcel#165‐
00613. Acceptance of the Kwik Trip Offer 02‐07‐2019 would restore wholly the County moneys 
disbursed to taxation districts for the delinquency. For these reasons, the transaction has a 
neutral financial impact.  
 
Legal Impact Note: Passage of Resolution No. 4‐19, as amended, would result in binding the 
County to the terms and conditions of the revised Kwik Trip offer incorporated into this 
resolution. 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on said amendments to Resolution No. 04‐19.  
Motion to amend Resolution No. 04‐19 as stated carried by unanimous voice vote.  

6



5 
 

 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19 as amended.  
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 04‐19 as amended carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Resolution No. 04‐19:  Resolution Concerning Offer of Kwik Trip to Purchase Tax Delinquent 
Lands Located in Village of Osceola adopted as amended.  
 
Corporation Counsel Malone was excused from the County Board session at 4:04 p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Luke called upon Deputy County Administrator/Employee Relations Director 
Jerrick to provide information to the Board regarding incoming Administrator Osborne and the 
process of developing Performance Management Process and Practices. Board received 
information regarding scheduling individual meetings with new County Administrator Osborne 
and the need for the Board/Executive Committee to develop recommendations and goals with 
the new Administrator to use for the 90 day performance evaluation.  
 
Time was given for Supervisors announcements.  
 
Vice Chairman Luke called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Larsen/Demulling) to adjourn. Vice 
Chairman Luke called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  Vice Chairman Luke declared meeting adjourned 4:14 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
 
 
 
 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



112



113



114



115



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217


	Minutes 2-19-19
	Clam Falls Dam intergov agreement proposal
	Res2018 93 18 FairgroundGrandstandCapitalImprovementProcess
	Ord2018 43-18 Engrossed Rules of Order Ordinance Nov 2018 update
	Ord 01-19 Repeal Rules of Order change
	Ord 15-19 Rural Addressing Formerly Ord 48-18
	Jan 2019 Bd Zoning Ord Info
	Ord 06-19 Subdivision Ordinance
	Ord 06-19 Subdivision Ord Draft
	Ord 07-19 Comp Land Ord
	Ord 08-19 Shoreland Zoning Ord
	Ord 08-19 Shoreland Zoning Ord Draft
	Res 14-19 Safety Week



